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ORDINANCE NO. =X -f\y G2/

AN ORDINANCE to designate the Drake Court and Darimore agartments,
located at 20th to 23rd and Jones Street as a Landmark iicri-
tage District pursuant to the Landmark Heritace Preservation
Ordinance of the City of Omaha.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OMAHA:

Section 1. That thevDrake Court and Dartmore Acartments are

located at 20th to 23rd and Jones Street, which 1is lecally des-

cribed as follows:

Beginning at the Northwest corner of Lot 7 of Clarkson
Place Addition, an addition to the Citv of Oimanha as
surveyed, platted and recorded in Douglas County,
Nebraska, thence Easterly 310.59 feet along the North
lines of Lots 7 through 12 of said Clarkscn Place,
thence Southerly along the West rigut-of-way line of
20th Street a distance of 361.23 feet, thence Vest
along a line 153.56 feet North of and parallel to the
North line of Leavenworth Street to the East right-of-
way line of 22nd Street, thence South along said right-
of-way line a distance of 55.06 fect, thence West along
a line 103.5 feet North of and parallel to the North
line of Leavenworth Street a distance of 313.5 feet,
thence North to the Southeast corner of Lot 5 of
Hillcrest Addition, an addition to the City of Omanha as
surveyed, platted and recorded in Douglas County,
Nebraska, thence East 247 feet to tiie West rignt-oifi-way
line of 22nd Street, thence North 40.52 feet, thence
East 367.85 feet, thence North to the point of begin-
ning.

Section 2. That for the reasons recited in Landmarks Heri-
tage Preservation Commission Resolution attached hcreto as Exhibit
I, and made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein, the
architectural characteristics of the Drake Court and Dartmore
Apartments are hereby deemed significant and worthy of preserva-
tion.

Section 3. That the Drake Court and Dartmore Apartments are
hereby designated pursuant to Section 4.16.080 of the Omaha
Municipal Code, and hereby subject to all of the provisions of
the Landmark Heritage Preservation Ordinance of the City of

Omaha.

L

- -~y

.:. r.l hereby‘ceftify that the toregoing is a true
) -f.a,nd correct copy of the original document
. now on vﬂle in the City Clerk’s office
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Section 4. That this Ordinance snhall e in full force and

take effect fifteen (15) davs from and after the date of its

passage.

IN ECED BY UNCILMEMBER
\

v \Love, LGN

APPROVED:

/ SR -2y —7/

PASSED DEC 19 1978

ATTEST:

OF

J EPU" OMAHA

/P A0
MAYOR OF TIIL uIT‘(} OF COMAIIA DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
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RESOLUTION - EXHIBIT |
DRAKE COURT LANDMARK HERITAGE DISTRICT DESIGNATION
LANDMARK HERITAGE PRESERVATION COMMISSION

RESOLVED BY THE LANDMARKS HERITAGE PRESERVATION COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
OMAHA:

WHEREAS, Theodore Hazer and Robert Rulis are the owners of the Drake Court and the
Dartmore Apartments; and,

WHEREAS, these owners, on September 9, 1978, requested that the Drake Court and
the Dartmore Apartments be designated as a Landmark Heritage District under the City of Omaha's
Landmarks Heritage Preservation Ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, the Drake Court and Dartmore Apartments were designed, financed and con-
structed by William B, Drake's Drake Realty Construction Company from 1916 to 1921; and,

WHEREAS, the Drake Court and Dartmore Apartments represent a total investigation
of the popular domestic Georgian Revival style of architecture; and,

WHEREAS, the Drake Court and Dartmore Apartments are historically related with
William B. Drake, Omaha's "Apartment House King" who was once landlord to over 1,000 Omaha

families.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LANDMARKS HERITAGE PRESERVATION
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF OMAHA:

THAT, the Drake Cert Apartments, 2005 to 2046 Jones Sfreet,r together with the
Dartmore Apartments, 2201 to 2211 Jones Street, be designated as a Landmark Heritage District
of the City of Omaha.
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H2-78-8

Cuase FFile Nunmber

Landmarks Hertage Preservation Commnnsston

APPLICATION FOR LANDMARK OR LANDMARK HERITAGE DISTRICT DESIGNATION

NAME OF STRUCTURIEK

fHistone prgke Court Apartments and the Durtmore Apartments

and/or Conunon
Droke Court Apartments and the Drake Court Annex

LOCNTION
Street and Number 2005, 06,11,12,17,18,23,24,25,26,27,28,33,34,39, 40,45 & 46 Jones
Street; 2201,03,05,07,09 & 11 Jones Street

CLASSIFICATION

Category Ownership Status Present Use
X  Dsuict ~_ Pubhe X Occupred Agriculture Museum
_ Buildmgs)y X Private " Unoccupied T Commercial 7 Park
~Structure . Both T Work in Progress | Educational  ~ Private Residence
. Site Public Acquisition — Accessible T Entertumment  Religious

Obhject ___ InProcess X Yes: Restricted T Government T Scienuific

T Yes: Unrestricted  Industrial T Pransportation
" No T Mihtary X Other

. Apartments

OWNER OF PROPERTY
Nu"\c DI'OCOI' lnc.; Roberf A. Rulis Phone Numbcr 342-2805; 345“3320

Strecet and Number
701 South 22nd Street; 12815 Dewey Street
City, State and Zip Code
Omaha, NE  68102; Omaha, NE 68154
Kepresentative Phone Number  342-2805
Theodore Hazer; same
sStreet and Number
701 South 22nd Street; same
City, State and “Zip Code
Omaha, NE  68102; same

LEGAL DESCRIPTION  Beginning at the northwest corner of Lot 7 of Clarkson Place Addition, an
addition to the City of Omaha as surveyed, platted and recorded in Douglas County, Nebraska, thence
easterly 310.59 feet along the north lines of Lots 7 thru 12 of said Clarkson Place, thence southerly along
the west right-of-way line of 20th Street a distance of 361.23 feet, thence west along a line 153.56 feet
north of and parallel to the north line of Leavenworth Street to the east right-of-way line of 22nd Street,
thence south along said right-of-way line a distance of 55.06 feet, thence west along a line 103.5 feet
north of and parallel to the north line of Leavenworth Street a distance of 313.5 feet, thence north to
the southeast corner of Lot 5 of Hillcrest Addition, an addition to the City of Omaha as surveyed, platted
and recorded in Douglas County, Nebraska, thence east 247 feet to the west right-of-way line of 22nd
Street, thence north 40.62 feet, thence east 367 .85 feet, thence north to the point of beginning.

REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
‘f1tle. Omaha City Architecture, Landmarks Inc.
Date 1977 Federal State County X Local

[P |
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Title:  Omaha City Planning Department Historic Structure Survey

Date: 1978 X Local

2
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LHPC Cuice No, H2-78-8, APPLICANT Hazer and Rulis request LANDMARK HERITAGE
DISTRICT DLSIGNATION 1ur 20TH to 23RD and Jones Street (Drake Court and Drake Court
Anncx). Arca to he desiynated is within dotled line.
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THE UNDERSTGNED HEREBY PETUTION Pl CITY ‘(‘UUI\.‘(.'I.I.
OF THE crrYy OoF OMAHA TO BE INCLUDED WITHIN A

LANDMARE HERPTAGE DISTRICT TO B CREATED DPUNSUANT
TO SECTION 1.16.080 OF THi OMAHA MUNLCIDAL COLD'L

Nitne: Date Property & Owncership
Interest
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DELCRIPTION
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Constiucted over a five year period, 1916 10 1721, the conplex of nineteen apartment
buildings which comprise the Diake Court and Dartmore Apartments constitules the last
consistent street architecture that Omaha has had. Designed, financed and constivcred
by William B. Drake's Droke Realty Construction Company at a total cost of 810,000,
the unified orranger'nent of these residential structures around landscaped pedestriun areus
represents a total investigation of the popular domestic Georgian Revival style of architecture.
The district's Georgian Revival plan is marked by regularity and exaggerated symmetry and
successfully fulfills the developer's requirement to produce a cohesive and identifiable unit
from the various facades.

Initial construction during 1916 and 1917 centered at 22nd and Jones Streets. There,
six three-—stpry over raised basement concrete apartment buildings were erected at a cost of
$150,000 and were arranged so that three structures aligned with the northern right-of-way
of Jones Street and three with t/he southern. Between the red brick faced structures, a
gateway filled with wrought iron and flanked by well-proportioned piers of brick allowed
access to a small landscaped formal garden complete with two gazeboes. The facades
terminate in a well-designed white terro—.cofto cornice and brick parapet which, in con-
junction with the white flat-headed window frames, give pleasant relief to the red
brickwork. The main central Georgian doorway is the special feature of the facade --
brick pilostefs support a keystoned, round arch opening above which is located a double

arched window surrounded by a round brick architecture.
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By mid 1917, tlie corporation had initiated the second phase of constivction == two
< lacing Toot story over radised busement apartment complexes tocated ditectly to the cast
of the o«.iginol units. Lrected at a cost of $5150,000, a laige terraced formal garden
separates the two continuous 1ed brick facades.  Terra-cotta embellishments are concen-
trated to the sun porches which encroach upon the go:dens and break the smooth regulaiity
of the fucude. Again, the central doorways of the thice-part facade is the major featuie.
Biick columns, capped with mildly Prairie Style terra-cotta, rise |3 stoiies on eitl.er side
of the entrance, above which is located a tripartite stained glass transom. Between the
second und third stories, a Palladian terra-cotta window reflects the Georgian influence
and on the fourth floor the tripartite stained glass transom is repreated in window form.
The building terminates in a white terra-cotta cornice and brick parapet, which echoes
the white tones of the flat-heuded window frames.

During the early months of 1918, work had commenced on the construction of six
additional structures to the east. Similar in arrangement and detailing to the apartments

of the first phase, these structures were of four stories and contained a main central arched

doorway supported by terra-cotta faced columns. Located directly above is a double arched

window with a central terra-cotta column. Terraces and brick stairs occupy the public

gardens between the apartments.

In May of 1919, construction of the Dartmore Apartments began on Jones Street between

22nd and 23rd Streets. This location, west of the original complex but in line with the

Drake Court structures, produced the opportunity to expand the Drake Court Complex in

a westerly direction. The five four-story brick-faced structures (the Ames, Bedford, Colfax,

Dupont and Emerson) employ a structural concrete floor supported by concrete block bearing

walls. The main symmetrical facades contain a central vertical row of double-hung windows
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Hark ¢ on eithier side by pairs of vertical “slit" windows. The cential rectangular
enliutiee, unlike previous ones, is void of ornamentation but projecting aiched canopies
provide u 1epetitive focal point which enhances the sticet-scape.

Ore additional stiucture, not related to the development of Drake Couit but localed
within the district boundaries, is a two story carriage house desigrlw‘ed by John Latenser
and constructed by McGowan & Jacobberger in 1907, The Shingle Style structuie, originally
part of the Fred Davis Estate at 20th & Jones Streets, is clad in a uniform covering of un-
painted wood shingles from the Swedish gambrel roof to the brick first story walls. The eaves
of the roof are close to the walls so as not to distract from the homogeneous and monochromatic

shingle covering. The sash windows located on all facades are geneially small and are

grouped into twos and threes.
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e tirst of all apuitinent houses constiucted in Omaha was the " Mengedoht ™ Luilt
in 16v? 'ul 816 Su. 22nd Stieer, a four-story biick building of 34 units owned Ly Fred
Mengedoht,  He later built the Lorraine Apartments in 1894, Piior to the Luilding of
the Mengedoht, nearly all so-called apartnients in Omaha were flats above stores, or
St. Louis flats. The increasing demaund for apartments produced the Sherman, V/inona,
Normandy and Clarinda prior to 1900 and the Colbert about 1905.

The Truns-Mississippi Exposition in Omgha in 1898 brought R.C. Strehlow who
constructed o number of the exposition buildings. Mr. Strehlow later purchased a luige
tract of land between 16th and 18th Streets, north of Grace Street, and in 1907 started
to construct a number of buildings on the beautiful grounds -- the Majestic of 28 units,
the Strehlow in 1909, the Roland in 1910, the Margaret in 1916 and the Strehlow Annex
in 1918, a total of 128 apartments, |

Traver Brothers, contractors and real estate operators, erected a number of apart-
ments starting with the St. Mary, 23 units in 1909; the Alsation, 12 units in 1910; the
Nodway, 24 units in [913; the Marley, 18 units in 1921; Bretner Court, I8 units in 1924;
the Boulevard, 25 units in 1926; the Roycroft, 12 units in 1927; the Radcliff, 18 units in
1927; Tudor Arms, 22 units in 1929; and many smaller units. In all, nearly 200 apartments
units were built by the Traver Brothers.,

About 1910, V. P, Chiode built the Leone Apartments, and during the next few
years the Carpathia, the Florentine and the Chiode (now renaomed the Lancaster) for a

totul of 89 apartments in four buildings.
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Plastings and Heyden built the Dewey, ldalia, Victoiia, Milton, Hainey, Faiirview
annt Meliose, artotal & 8l apartment unit,.  Edward Johnson, an early builder, constivcted
the Clula Vista, Dwight and tanickerbocker of 12 apartments each,

While still a mechanical engincering student at Ames, lowa, younyg William B,

Drake dieamed of being the bigyest apartment house king of the world. He and his

brother George cume to Omaha in about 1915 and built three houses on 28th and Farnam

Stieets and the Ekard Apartments on 29th and Jackson. \Xll,ith their profits, they organized

the Druke Realty Construction Company in 19216 and purchased the S. S. Caldwell propesty
located between 20th and 22nd Stieets about 300 feet north of Leavenworth. Here they started
construction in 1916 of the first building of their masterpiece, the Drake Court, ard in the
next three years finished the fourteen buildings which contained 216 apartment units, In late
1919, the company began construction of the Dartmore Apartments, now Drake Court Annex,
on Jones Street between 22nd and 23rd Streets. Composed of five buildings, each structure
contained 36 one room and bath apartments.

in 1920, William Drake was the central figure ina tenant's war which attracted nation-
wide attention when occupants of Drake Court organized to combat a boost in the $35 per
month rent.

Employing the same plan, William Drake thenbuilt the Ainsworth, Beverly, and
Windsor Arms, eleven buildings with a total 396 apértments. He next changed to the plan
of a cross and built the Hcmscom, four stories, and the Alhambra and Palmer, three stories,
for a total of 149 apartiments. Another plan built Terrace Court and Turner Court with 120
units and later a slightly larger plan produced the Austin and Carberry with 90 units.  In

1922, the Drake Company was erecting apartments at the rate of one floor a week.
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to uddition, Diake also built for other owners the Coronado, the Elwood, Kingsborough,
Ekard Court, the lasalle and Biundon Apartments, During the ten years 1916 to 1928, this
one company erected more than 1,100 apartment units of fireproof construction.

In 1925, Diake's holdings in Omaha were estimated as high as four million dollars, but
in quickly erecting such o large number of apartments, he soon began to compete with hinwelf.
Financial trouble, brought on by this overbuilding, forced Drake to file for bankruptcy in 1925
and tuin everything over to his creditors, including the Drake Court Apartments which he financed
built and named after the family. William 8. Drake, who made and lost a fortune before he
was 33 years old, died on July 27, 1935 after managing one of the smaller of his former

apurtments, the Brandon.
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